1988

# Western Capital and Securities, Inc. v. Helen Knudsvig : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

### ISSUE NO. I

THE DECISION OF THE TRIAL COURT IN DISMISSING PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT NO CAUSE OF ACTION WAS CONTRARY TO THE FACTS BEFORE THE COURT AND THE STATE OF THE LAW AND SHOULD BE REVERSED AND JUDGMENT ENTERED IN FAVOR OF THE PLAINTIFF FOR THE AMOUNT PRAYED IN PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT.

### ISSUE NO. II

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS FINDING THAT PLAINTIFF VIOLATED SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE RULE 10B-5 IN THAT THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY APPLY THE FACTS TO THE REQUIRED ELEMENTS FOR SUCH A VIOLATION AND DID NOT FIND ACTIONS ON THE PART OF THE PLAINTIFF TO SUPPORT THE NECESSARY ELEMENTS OF A VIOLATION OF THIS RULE.

### ISSUE NO. III

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS FINDING THAT PLAINTIFF VIOLATED SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE RULE 10B-10 IN THAT THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY APPLY THE FACTS TO THE REQUIRED ELEMENTS FOR SUCH A VIOLATION AND DID NOT FIND ACTIONS ON THE PART OF THE PLAINTIFF TO SUPPORT THE NECESSARY ELEMENTS OF A VIOLATION OF THIS RULE.

### ISSUE NO. IV

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS FINDING THAT PLAINTIFF VIOLATED VARIOUS NASD RULES IN THAT THERE WAS NO SHOWING THAT THE DEFENDANT HAD A PRIVATE RIGHT OF ACTION FOR VIOLATION OF NASD RULES, THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY APPLY THE FACTS TO THE REQUIRED ELEMENTS FOR SUCH A VIOLATION AND DID NOT FIND ACTIONS ON THE PART OF THE PLAINTIFF TO SUPPORT THE NECESSARY ELEMENTS OF A VIOLATION OF THIS RULE AND THAT SEVERAL OF THE STATED RULES DO NOT AND DID NOT EXIST AT THE TIME OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION.

### ISSUE NO. V

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN RENDERING JUDGMENT AGAINST THE PLAINTIFF FOR PUNITIVE DAMAGES. PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARE NOT AVAILABLE PURSUANT TO THE ALLEGATIONS SET FORTH IN DEFENDANT'S AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM, ARE NOT AVAILABLE WITHOUT A FINDING OF ACTUAL DAMAGES, AND ARE NOT AVAILABLE UNLESS SPECIFICALLY REQUESTED BY THE DEFENDANT IN HER COUNTERCLAIM.



ISSUE NO. VI

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN RENDERING FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS AND JUDGMENT RELATING TO THE FOLLOWING MATTERS WHICH WERE NOT AT ISSUE BEFORE THE COURT, ARE NOT SUSTAINABLE UNDER THE FACTS OR ARE CONTRARY TO LAW. THE IMPROPER MATTERS INCLUDE THAT A STOCK SALE CANNOT TAKE PLACE WITHOUT A CERTIFICATE IN POSSESSION; THAT PLAINTIFF ATTEMPTED TO PURCHASE DEFENDANT'S STOCK TO PREVENT PROFIT TAKING BY THE DEFENDANT; THAT THE MOTIVE TO PURCHASE THE DEFENDANT'S STOCK WAS IMPROPER AND ILLEGAL; THAT THE REASON THE DEFENDANT NEVER RECEIVED HER STOCK CERTIFICATE FROM THE TRANSFER AGENT WAS TO FURTHER SOME ALLEGED SCHEME; THAT THE PLAINTIFF IS REQUIRED TO CLOSE ALL SALE TRANSACTIONS WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF THE TRANSACTION; THAT A CONVERSION OF DEFENDANT'S SHARES OCCURED; THAT ILLEGAL INSIDER ACTIVITY OCCURED AND THAT THE PLAINTIFF HAD ANY HOLD OR CONTROL OVER VENTURE CONSOLIDATED INC.; THAT A CHEAT OF THE STOCK BUYING PUBLIC IN GENERAL OCCURED.

STATUTES AND RULES VERBATIM

Section 10b of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Sec. 10. It shall be unlawful for any person, directly or indirectly, by the use of any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce or of the mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange--

Sec. 10(b) To use or employ, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security registered on a national exchange or any security not so registered, any manipulative or deceptive device or contrivance in contravention of such rules and regulations as the Commission may prescribe as necessary or appropriate in the public interest or for the protection of investors.

Section 28 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Sec. 28 (a) The rights and remedies provided by this title shall be in addition to any and all other rights and remedies that may exist at law or in equity; but no person permitted to maintain a suit for damages under the provisions of this title shall recover, through satisfaction of judgment in one or more actions, a total amount in excess of his actual damages on account of the act complained of. Nothing in this title shall affect the jurisdiction of the

securities commission (or any agency or officer performing like functions) of any State over any securities or any person insofar as it does not conflict with the provisions of this title or the rules and regulations thereunder. No State law which prohibits or regulates the making or promoting of wagering or gaming contracts, or the operation of "bucket shops" or other similar or related activities, shall invalidate any put, call, straddle, option, privilege, or other security, or apply to any activity which is incidental or related to the offer, purchase, sale, exercise, settlement, or closeout of any such instrument, if such instrument is traded pursuant to rules and regulations of a self-regulatory organization that are filed with the Commission pursuant to section 19(b) of the Act.

UCA 70A-8-319

A Contract for the sale of securities is not enforceable by way of action or defense unless

(a) there is some writing signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought or by his authorized agent or broker sufficient to indicate that a contract has been made for sale of a stated quantity of described securities at a defined or stated price; or

(b) delivery of the security has been accepted or payment has been made but the contract is enforceable under this provision only to the extent of such delivery or payment; or

(c) within a reasonable time a writing in confirmation of the sale or purchase and sufficient against the sender under paragraph (a) has been received by the party against whom enforcement is sought and he has failed to send written objection to its contents within ten days after its receipt; or

(d) the party against whom enforcement is sought admits in his pleading, testimony or otherwise in court that a contract was made for sale of a stated quantity of described securities at a defined or stated price.

Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 10b-5

It shall be unlawful for any person, directly or indirectly by the use of any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange,

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud,

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make

the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, or

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security.

Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 10b-10

See Addendum attached hereto.

National Association of Securities Dealers Section 12

Sec. 12. A member at or before the completion of each transaction with a customer shall give or send to such customer written notification disclosing (1) whether such member is acting as a broker for such customer, as a dealer for his own account, as a broker for some other person, or as a broker for such customer and some other person; and (2) in any case in which such member is acting as a broker for such customer or for both such customer, and some other person, either the name of the person from whom the security was purchased or to whom it was sold for such customer and the date and time when such transaction took place or the fact that such information will be furnished upon the

request of such customer, and the source and amount of any commission or other remuneration received or to be received by such member in connection with the transaction.

National Association of Securities Dealers Section 18

Sec. 18. No member shall effect any transaction in, or induce the purchase or sale of, any security by means of any manipulative, deceptive or other fraudulent device or contrivance.

National Association of Securities Dealers Section 21(a&b)

Sec. 21.

Requirements

(a) Each member shall keep and preserve books, accounts, records, memorandum, and correspondence in conformity with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and statements of policy promulgated thereunder and with the rules of this Association.

Information on accounts

(b) Each member shall maintain accounts of customers in such form and manner as to show the following information: name, address, and whether the customer is legally of age; the signature of the registered representative introducing

the account and the signature of the member or the partner, officer or manager accepting the account for the member. If the customer is associated with or employed by another member, this fact must be noted. In discretionary accounts, the member shall also record the age or approximate age and occupation of the customer as well as the signature of each person authorized to exercise discretion in such account.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

---

WESTERN CAPITAL AND SECURITIES,  
INC. )

Plaintiff-Appellant, )

-v- )

No. 870056

HELEN KNUDSVIG, )

Defendant-Respondent, )

---

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

---

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case arose out of the sale of securities by the Defendant and her failure to deliver the certificate to finalize the transaction resulting in a purchase of securities to close the sale transaction. A Complaint was filed on December 19, 1984 for recovery of the loss occasioned by the failure to deliver the certificate for the securities sold. A Counterclaim was filed and amended alleging violations of Rule 10b-5, Rule 10b-10 and various NASD rules. Trial was held October 16 and 20, 1986 before the Honorable John F. Wahlquist. Judgment was entered



November 10, 1986 in favor of the Defendant for punitive damages only in the amount of \$10,000. A Motion to Alter or Amend the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment was filed on November 10, 1986 and denied February 3, 1987. Appeal was taken to this Court by the Plaintiff on February 3, 1987.

## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Plaintiff is a securities Broker-Dealer licensed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Utah Securities Division. (Page 7). Defendant was a customer who purchased securities through Plaintiff and numerous other brokerage firms in Salt lake and Ogden, Utah. (Page 10, 72, 416, 422, 463).

Prior to 1984, Defendant purchased in an Underwriting through Plaintiff 20,000 shares of stock of Venture Consolidated, Inc. (Venture) for a total price of \$200.00. (Page 416). The offering of the Venture stock was an unspecified purpose offering wherein Venture proposed to raise funds and then attempt to enter into a profitable business opportunity. Pursuant to the Underwriting, the Transfer Agent, Interwest Transfer, was to deliver directly to the Defendant, her purchased shares of stock. (Page 417).

On July 26, 1984, Venture proposed the adoption by the shareholders of a proposition to acquire for stock, Big O Tires, Inc., Snow Bros., Inc., S&H Corporation and D&J Corporation, all of which were Utah franchisees of Big O Tires. (Exhibit 2P). Defendant acknowledged receipt of Notice of this proposed merger. (Page 401). The Venture

Shareholders approved the acquisitions on September 27, 1984 at a special meeting of shareholders and changed the name of the Corporation to Tires, Inc. (Tires) and also approved a 20 for 1 reverse split. (Page 72).

On or about September 13, 1984, Plaintiff's representative, Louis Babcock (Babcock) went to Defendant's place of business and notified Defendant that her shares of Venture had increased from \$.01 to approximately \$.15 to \$.17 per share and asked if Defendant desired to sell her shares. (Page 410-2,25). Defendant declined. (Page 425-6). Defendant later attempted to contact Babcock, and being unable to do so, contacted Plaintiff's office in Salt Lake City where she spoke to Richard Davis (Davis), a registered representative for Plaintiff. (Page 440-3). After a lengthy discussion Defendant requested the sale of her shares of stock of Venture and also requested that the commission on the sale be given to Babcock. (Page 444). Davis, not knowing how to accomplish the sale with commission being payable to Babcock, and while the Defendant waited on the phone, contacted Richard L. Parker, the Executive Vice President of Plaintiff regarding instructions. (Page 445). Parker wrote a trade ticket showing the method to ensure the commission was payable to

Babcock and delivered the ticket to Davis who took the ticket to Plaintiff's Trading Department which Department accepted the sale order at \$.17 per share. (Page 445-6). Davis then returned to the phone and informed Defendant of the sale and the price of the sale. (Page 448). Several days later, Defendant again contacted Davis and indicated she had changed her mind and did not want to sell her stock. (Page 447-8). Davis informed her that she could not cancel the trade. She asked what to do and Davis requested she contact her representative, Babcock, for specific instructions. (Page 448). Defendant failed to deliver the stock certificate and Plaintiff's Financial Principal, Kim H. Johnson, (Johnson) contacted Babcock and instructed him to contact Defendant concerning the certificate. (Page 469). Babcock contacted Defendant and she indicated she would deliver the certificate to Plaintiff's office in Salt Lake. (Page 469). Approximately one week passed and having not received the certificate, Johnson again contacted Babcock and instructed him to contact Defendant. Babcock contacted Defendant and was informed that Defendant could not find her certificate. Babcock told her how to obtain replacement of the certificate from Interwest Transfer. (Page 471). Defendant indicated she would get her husband's help in

finding the certificate. (Page 471, 502). Again a length of time passed and the certificate was not delivered. Johnson again contacted Babcock and he again contacted Defendant. (Page 501-2). She indicated she could not find the certificate and had never received it from Interwest Transfer after the initial underwriting. (Page 471). Babcock again informed Defendant of the method to replace the stock certificate. (Page 471).

Defendant then contacted Plaintiff and spoke with Johnson. Defendant told Johnson that she had done the trade with Davis. (Page 502-4). Defendant indicated she did not have the stock. (Page 504). Johnson explained the replacement procedures, (Page 505) though also informed her that if she did not deliver the certificate prior to November 30, 1984, that Plaintiff would buy in stock to cover her sale and she would be responsible for any losses. (Page 505). Defendant became angry and requested the cancellation of the sale. (Page 505). Johnson again reiterated the need to deliver the stock certificate and ended the conversation. (Page 505).

Defendant failed to deliver the certificate and on November 30, 1984, Plaintiff purchased for Defendant's account, stock to cover Defendant's failure to deliver her

certificate. (Page 505). On December 12, 1984, Plaintiff's Counsel notified Defendant of the condition of her account and requested payment of the difficiency created due to Defendant's failure to deliver the stock certificate. (Exhibit 5D). Payment was not received and on December 19, 1984, suit was filed by Plaintiff requesting payment. (Page 7). Defendant counterclaimed violation of 10b-5 and 10b-10 of the Securities Act of 1934 and various NASD regulations. (Page 70). Trial was held before Judge John F. Wahlquist and Judgment was entered November 10, 1986 awarding Defendant punitive damages in the amount of \$10,000. (Page 295). Plaintiff made a motion to Alter or Amend the Findings, Conclusions and Decree (Page 299) which Motion Judge Wahlquist denied on February 3, 1987 (Page 318) and Plaintiff appealed both the Judgment and the denial of the Motion to Alter or Amend. Appeal was filed February 3, 1987. (Page 333).

## SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

### ARGUMENT NO. I

THE DECISION OF THE TRIAL COURT IN DISMISSING PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT NO CAUSE OF ACTION WAS CONTRARY TO THE FACTS BEFORE THE COURT AND THE STATE OF THE LAW AND SHOULD BE REVERSED AND JUDGMENT ENTERED IN FAVOR OF THE PLAINTIFF FOR THE AMOUNT PRAYED IN PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT.

### ARGUMENT NO. II

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS FINDING THAT PLAINTIFF VIOLATED SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE RULE 10B-5 IN THAT THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY APPLY THE FACTS TO THE REQUIRED ELEMENTS FOR SUCH A VIOLATION AND DID NOT FIND ACTIONS ON THE PART OF THE PLAINTIFF TO SUPPORT THE NECESSARY ELEMENTS OF A VIOLATION OF THIS RULE.

### ARGUMENT NO. III

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS FINDING THAT PLAINTIFF VIOLATED SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE RULE 10B-10 IN THAT THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY APPLY THE FACTS TO THE REQUIRED ELEMENTS FOR SUCH A VIOLATION AND DID NOT FIND ACTIONS ON THE PART OF THE PLAINTIFF TO SUPPORT THE NECESSARY ELEMENTS OF A VIOLATION OF THIS RULE.

### ARGUMENT NO. IV

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS FINDING THAT PLAINTIFF VIOLATED VARIOUS NASD RULES IN THAT THERE WAS NO SHOWING THAT THE DEFENDANT HAD A PRIVATE RIGHT OF ACTION FOR VIOLATION OF NASD RULES, THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY APPLY THE FACTS TO THE REQUIRED ELEMENTS FOR SUCH A VIOLATION AND DID NOT FIND ACTIONS ON THE PART OF THE PLAINTIFF TO SUPPORT THE NECESSARY ELEMENTS OF A VIOLATION OF THIS RULE AND THAT SEVERAL OF THE STATED RULES DO NOT AND DID NOT EXIST AT THE TIME OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION.

### ARGUMENT NO. V

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN RENDERING JUDGMENT AGAINST THE PLAINTIFF FOR PUNITIVE DAMAGES. PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARE NOT AVAILABLE PURSUANT TO THE ALLEGATIONS SET FORTH IN DEFENDANT'S AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM, ARE NOT AVAILABLE WITHOUT A FINDING OF ACTUAL DAMAGES, AND ARE NOT AVAILABLE UNLESS SPECIFICALLY REQUESTED BY THE DEFENDANT IN HER COUNTERCLAIM.

ARGUMENT NO. VI

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN RENDERING FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS AND JUDGMENT RELATING TO THE FOLLOWING MATTERS WHICH WERE NOT AT ISSUE BEFORE THE COURT, ARE NOT SUSTAINABLE UNDER THE FACTS OR ARE CONTRARY TO LAW. THE IMPROPER MATTERS INCLUDE THAT A STOCK SALE CANNOT TAKE PLACE WITHOUT A CERTIFICATE IN POSSESSION; THAT PLAINTIFF ATTEMPTED TO PURCHASE DEFENDANT'S STOCK TO PREVENT PROFIT TAKING BY THE DEFENDANT; THAT THE MOTIVE TO PURCHASE THE DEFENDANT'S STOCK WAS IMPROPER AND ILLEGAL; THAT THE REASON THE DEFENDANT NEVER RECEIVED HER STOCK CERTIFICATE FROM THE TRANSFER AGENT WAS TO FURTHER SOME ALLEGED SCHEME; THAT THE PLAINTIFF IS REQUIRED TO CLOSE ALL SALE TRANSACTIONS WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF THE TRANSACTION; THAT A CONVERSION OF DEFENDANT'S SHARES OCCURED; THAT ILLEGAL INSIDER ACTIVITY OCCURED AND THAT THE PLAINTIFF HAD ANY HOLD OR CONTROL OVER VENTURE CONSOLIDATED INC.; THAT A CHEAT OF THE STOCK BUYING PUBLIC IN GENERAL OCCURED.



## ARGUMENT

### ARGUMENT NO. I PLAINTIFF'S CASE

THE PLAINTIFF IS ENTITLED TO JUDGMENT AGAINST THE DEFENDANT PURSUANT TO THE CONTRACT OF SALE ENTERED INTO BY THE PARTIES.

According to the Restatement of Contracts 2d Section 17, the formation of a contract requires a bargain in which there is a manifestation of mental assent to the exchange and a consideration. The testimony of Davis clearly shows that the Defendant contacted the Plaintiff and entered into a contract for the sale of 20,000 shares of Venture Consolidated stock (now Tires, Inc.). There was an agreement to sell shares with the Plaintiff paying for the shares and the Defendant agreeing to transfer ownership. Thus there was a bargain, mutually agreed upon with consideration given on both sides. The Defendant agreed to sell her shares and Plaintiff agreed to purchase the shares. (Page 440-8). The testimony of Parker supports Davis' testimony in that he corroborates the testimony as to the conversation on the date of the sale of the stock. (Page 561). Davis' testimony of the conversation in which the sale contract was entered into is further corroborated by Davis testimony of the subsequent conversation where the Defendant admitted the existence of the contract. (Page

447-8). Exhibit 3P, the trade ticket, which was prepared on the date of the sale conversation clearly evidences the sale, confirms the price, date, number of shares, and participants to the transaction. Defendant's self-serving denial after suit was filed cannot overcome the evidence of the contract. The District Court recognized the existence of the conversation on the date of the sale in its Findings thus acknowledging that the Defendant had lied while testifying that she never made the call on that date. (Page 288-9). Defendant's claim that it was all a scheme to get her shares of stock and that the conversation didn't occur is belied since Davis would not have known if or how many shares the Defendant had in Venture Consolidated since the shares were not in the Plaintiff's possession. That fact that Davis knew how many shares Defendant possessed confirms not only the conversation but Defendant's desire to sell a specified number of shares. The price rise and potential profit on the sale is consistent with the District Court's findings that the Defendant invested "in new issues which will hopefully achieve a quick rise in value." (Page 287). Defendant's knowledge of the sale, which she denies, is further evidenced by the testimony of Davis that the Defendant called him again shortly after the sale and said

she had changed her mind about the sale. (Page 447). The District Court in its Memorandum Decision recognized the existence of this conversation. (Page 279). Further the Defendant admitted to Johnson that she had done the trade with Davis. (Page 504).

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