1988

Karen C. Martinez v. Jess M. Martinez : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

POINT I

In an action for divorce the court has broad equity powers to allocate the benefits and successes as well as the debts and liabilities resulting from the joint actions of the family unit prior to the breakup of the principal partners. The discretion associated with this power is essential to the due process function and should not be restricted nor distorted by unduly restrictive historical definitions and categories which have evolved over the years to expedite judicial processing of divorce cases.

POINT II

The remedy of "equitable restitution" fashioned by the Utah Court of Appeals in this case is a sound and creative refinement of the court's equity powers to identify and allocate the deferred returns from a marital investment in human capital which bestows on one of the partners a potential for substantially increased future earnings.

POINT III

In order to deal equitably with the allocation of intangible marital assets the court may need to reorder the sequence in which divorce issues are resolved.

POINT IV

In the interest of equity, this court should direct that the final remedy fashioned on appeal to correct the harshly inequitable Decree of Divorce entered by the trial court should be made retroactive to May 31, 1985, the date of trial.

POINT V

Plaintiff has clearly carried a substantial burden of bringing about a necessary change in the law of this jurisdiction in order to resolve the inequities imposed upon her by the trial court and should thus be awarded a substantial contribution to the significant costs and attorney's fees incurred throughout the trial and appellate process.

ARGUMENT

In order to avoid substantial redundancy in the material presented to this court, plaintiff refers the court to Point I of her appellant's brief filed in January, 1986. That brief contains a thorough analysis of the case law up to the time that the brief was filed. Only more recent cases are included in this brief. It is clear that the courts of the various states have experienced considerable difficulty in dealing with the allocation of deferred returns from joint marital investments in human capital which bestow upon one of the partners a substantially increased future earning potential. The Utah Court of Appeals has made commendable progress in this area by creating the remedy of equitable restitution.

POINT I

IN AN ACTION FOR DIVORCE THE COURT HAS BROAD EQUITY POWERS TO ALLOCATE THE BENEFITS AND SUCCESSES AS WELL AS THE DEBTS AND LIABILITIES RESULTING FROM THE JOINT ACTIONS OF THE FAMILY UNIT PRIOR TO THE BREAKUP OF THE PRINCIPAL PARTNERS. THE DISCRETION ASSOCIATED WITH THIS POWER IS ESSENTIAL TO THE DUE PROCESS FUNCTION AND SHOULD NOT BE RESTRICTED NOR DISTORTED BY UNDULY RESTRICTIVE HISTORICAL DEFINITIONS AND CATEGORIES WHICH HAVE EVOLVED OVER THE YEARS TO EXPEDITE JUDICIAL PROCESSING OF DIVORCE CASES.

The legal systems of this country and the State of Utah inherently provide structure and predictability to the interactions between our citizens while retaining the flexibility to adapt to the social evolution of society. Some changes, such as those in the area of women's suffrage and civil rights have been major and highly publicized corrections involving legislation and significant public input. Others, such as in the field of equity, are more subtle and are carried out within the court system without mass public participation. The latter is clearly the case as the courts across the country attempt to deal with the distribution of the less tangible assets which have been jointly acquired by the partners to a now bankrupt marriage. As set forth in plaintiff's earlier brief, some courts have attempted to classify these expectations of increased income or intangible assets as "property" in order to fashion a means by which both marital partners can share in the returns to the investment. As defendant points out in his brief, there has been significant resistance to categorizing such intangibles as property as a result of their lack of transferability and other historic attributes of property. Typical of that resistance, the Colorado Supreme Court, in the Graham case (In Re Marriage of Graham, 574 P.2d 75 [Colo. 1978]) stated that the educational degree at issue therein did not . . .

. . . have an exchange value or any objective transferrable value on an open market. It is personal to the holder. It terminates on the death of the holder and is not inheritable. It cannot be assigned, sold, transferred, conveyed or pledged. Id. at 77.

While the Colorado Court recognized that the educational degree requires a substantial investment of study time and effort by the benefitted spouse, they totally ignored the additional effort, support and sacrifices made by the contributing spouse. Having done that, the court dismissed the value of the increased income potential conferred upon the benefitted spouse, and denied Mrs. Graham what the trial court had originally awarded her as a share of the discounted value of this flow of increased future earnings. (Id. at 77.) The court totally ignored the investment decisions that had lead to the undertaking, and the joint nature of the effort and sacrifices made by both partners to bring about the resultant return on the investment.

Many of the states which refused to characterize such increased future earnings as property have attempted to reach an equitable result by "reimbursing" the contributing spouse for her efforts and sacrifices through an award of alimony based upon the increased earnings of the benefitted spouse. (See plaintiff's original brief, Issue number 1.) In order to avoid the unfairness of such an allocation, (wherein the contributing spouse's share of the joint investment in human capital is terminated by the non-related event of her remarriage) some of the states have attempted to make all or part of the contributing spouse's alimony non-terminable by his or her remarriage. As Judge Orme point out in the Appeals Court decision in the case at bar, to award the contributing spouse regular alimony, terminable upon remarriage, is to "force her to forego marriage and perhaps

even be celibate for many years simply to realize a return on her investments and sacrifices" Martinez v. Martinez, 754 P.2d 69 at 77, fn 9 (Utah App. 1988) citing Hubbard v. Hubbard, 603 P.2d 747 at 752 (Okla. 1979). The glaring inequity of this terminable alimony approach is further highlighted by the fact that after the remarriage of the contributing spouse, the benefitted spouse now receives the entire return on the investment which was made by both marital partners and the resulting standards of living are very unequal. See citations on original brief.

The non terminable alimony approach was alluded to by Judge Orme in footnote 4 of the opinion in Peterson v. Peterson, 737 P.2d 237 (Utah App. 1987) at page 242 wherein he stated

In another kind of recurring case, typified by Graham, where divorce occurs shortly after the degree is obtained, traditional alimony analysis would often work hardship because, while both spouses have modest incomes at the time of divorce, the one is on the threshold of a significant increase in earnings. Moreover, the spouse who sacrificed so the other could attain a degree is precluded from enjoying the anticipated dividends the degree will ordinarily provide. Nonetheless, such a spouse is typically not remote in time from his or her previous education and is otherwise better able to adjust and to acquire comparable skills, given the opportunity and the funding. In such cases, alimony analysis must become more creative to achieve fairness, and an award of "rehabilitative" or "reimbursement" alimony, not terminable upon remarriage, may be appropriate. See, e.g., Haugan v. Haugan, 117 Wis.2d 200, 343 N.W.2d 796 (1984); Mahoney v. Mahoney, 91 N.J. 488, 453 A.2d 527 (1982).

The approach suggested by Judge Orme is consistent with the position taken by plaintiff in her original (appellant's) brief to this court. At that time plaintiff came to the conclusion

that, under the then-existing tax laws, the non-terminable alimony approach was the only way to equitably allocate the benefits from the investment in human capital. The primary basis for such a position was that by making the payment alimony, the speculative nature of the future income would be eliminated, with both parties receiving their shares of the "return" as it was actually earned. In addition, the tax attributable to the portion of the income transferred to the contributing spouse would be shifted to her as she received the payment. If the transfer had been treated as a transfer of a property asset, the payment would have to have been made by the benefitted spouse from "after tax dollars" thereby placing the entire income package in the highest possible income tax bracket, and shifting to the benefitted spouse an unreasonable tax burden which he or she might not have been able mitigate through tax shelters.

With the change in the taxability of transfers between parties to a divorce brought about by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, the court now has the power to allocate the tax incidence of transfer payments made pursuant to a divorce action in order to achieve equity in the distribution. As a result, the need to term the transfer "alimony" in order to reach equity from the tax angle is no longer existent, and the allocation can be dealt with directly and without confusing normal alimony principles. The courts of this country have historically experienced very little difficulty in valuing and allocating tangible property assets, including capital assets, acquired during a marriage. In those

cases the courts do not limit their valuation to the mere depreciated value of the capital property assets of the family business, but value the business based upon its overall future income expectancy arising from that asset and other factors such as goodwill.

The courts have also been able to allocate assets which are primarily intangible, but have both tangible and intangible characteristics. The example used in plaintiff's initial brief was a McDonald's franchise. Although the investors might well pay \$500,000 to open a McDonald's franchise, less than half that value would be attributed to tangible property assets, with the remainder of the value attributable to goodwill and sales promotions performed nationwide for the purpose of developing and maintaining future income for all franchisees. The courts have no problem valuing that franchise at the time of a divorce, and the value placed on the asset at that time would not be limited to the actual cash inputs by each of the partners. The value would include the assets, the national goodwill that comes with the franchise and the local goodwill attributable to the successful operation of the store at issue, and reflected in the income expectancy projections utilized by the valuation experts.

The most difficult assets for the courts to allocate have been those which are entirely intangible, with none of the "hands on" characteristics of tangible property. These assets generally have a value far in excess of the token value of any property or certificate associated with the asset, and often contain elements

of speculation and other uncertainties as to future payouts. The assets are admittedly more difficult to value, but at trial both of plaintiff's expert witnesses testified, without contradiction, that such valuations are possible and are accepted by the business and economic community. (TT 63-65 and TT 79-88). Other courts have concluded that such valuation and equitable distribution is not only possible but required. In addition to cases cited in original brief, see In re Marriage of Smith, 518 N.E.2d 450 at 457 (Ill. App. 1 Dist. 1987) where the Illinois court held that

"(A) contributing spouse is entitled to some form of compensation for financial efforts and support provided to the student spouse in the expectation that the marital unit would prosper in the future as a direct result of the couple's previous sacrifices."

The New York Supreme Court continues to hold that one party's academic degree acquired during a marriage is marital property subject to equitable distribution reasoning that just as

"a non-vested pension is an asset subject to equitable distribution on divorce (s)o it should also be with professional licenses and academic degrees. Otherwise, with the simple stroke of serving a summons immediately prior to graduation day, a spouse contemplating divorce could prevent a spouse who assisted in his or her spouses (sic) attaining such a degree or license from receiving that which he or she is entitled to Freyer v. Freyer, 524 N.Y.S.2d 197 149 (Sup. 1987).

Likewise, the Michigan Court of Appeals continues to hold that, following its Woodworth decision (cited in plaintiff's original brief) a professional degree should be valued and equitably divided either in the property settlement or as alimony. Daniels v. Daniels, 418 N.W.2d 924 at 927 (Mich. App.

1988). See also Thomas v. Thomas, 417 N.W.2d 563 at 566 (Mich. App. 1987) where the contributing spouse was awarded one-eighth of the value of the student spouse's law degree, based on a valuation using information known at the time of trial, the contributing spouse having also received all equity in the parties' home and the bulk of other martial assets.

In Greer v. Greer, 353 S.E.2d 427 at 431 (N.C. App. 1987) the North Carolina Court found that the husband who sacrificed so his wife could obtain her medical degree was entitled to compensation. Under the North Carolina statute, professional licenses are separate property. However, the statutory factors used to determine an equitable result include "direct or indirect contributions made by one spouse to help educate or develop the career potential of the other spouse." The court specifically considered the contributing spouse's greater role in child care and homemaking duties in making the award. In addition to affirming that the contributing spouse deserved a cash award for the value of his contribution, the court affirmed the trial court awarding him the family home, despite the fact that he was not the custodial parent, to make the property distribution equitable.

As with the goodwill of the McDonald's franchise, the value of these intangible assets is a direct function of the future flow of income attributed to the asset. These valuation problems have generally been overcome by the courts in dealing with expected retirement benefits as was the case in Woodward v.

Woodward, 656 P.2d 431 (Utah 1982). As set forth in Woodward, the problems with speculation as to the duration of future retirement payouts and the amount of such payouts can be overcome by a structured payout of the benefits as they are received by the marital partner on whom the intangible asset was vested. In essence, the Woodward case tells us that the non-pensioned (contributing) spouse is entitled to one-half of the value of the pension which accrued to the pensioned (benefitted) spouse during the course of the marriage. In those cases it is clear that the contributing spouse (non-pensioned spouse) should receive one-half of the retirement payment as it is received, if the retirement benefit accrued entirely during the time that the parties were married, and if the court does not elect to place a present value on the pension benefits and offset it with other property accrued during the marriage partnership.

The courts have had the most difficulty in dealing with valuation and distribution of human capital acquired during a marriage and conferred entirely upon one of the spouses. In essence, the marital effort is a partnership undertaking wherein there is a significant shift of the marital resources to support the investment in the education and training of the benefitted spouse, to include a significant shift in the allocation of domestic duties, such as care for the home and children, to the contributing spouse. The contributing spouse is also called upon for direct contributions to the financial support of the family during the education of the benefitted spouse. Clearly, the

problem is that the asset acquired as a result of this investment is in the brain of the benefitted spouse. That being the case, it is impossible for the court to reach out and touch the asset and perhaps somehow divide portions of the brain between the parties.

Investment decisions involving such tangible assets as retirements are not always clear even to the participating parties. But, even in those cases the parties have often forgone a different job with higher current wages or perhaps lived in a less desirable location in order to secure the deferred benefit. Closer analysis of the process shows, however, that the investment decisions made by the parties in the human capital market are exactly the same as if the investment had been made in a machine for a family business. (TT 85, 11-23; 86, 7-22.)

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